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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR

THE DISTRICT OF ARIZONA
Federal Trade Commission, )
) CIV'01 0466 PHX ROS
Plaintiff, )
) STIPULATED FINAL
V. ) JUDGMENT AND
. ) ORDER FOR A
Bigsmart.com L.L.C.; Mark Tahiliani; ) " PERMANENT
and Harry Tahiliani, )  INJUNCTION
)
Defendants. )
).

Plaimtiff Federal Trade Commission (“Commission”) filed a Complaint on

Hakcss /22001, The Complaint charged Defendants Bigsmart.com LL.C

(“Bigsmart”), Mark Tahiliani, and Tlarry Tahiliani, collectively “Defendants,” with
_ violations of Section § of the Federal Trade Commission Act (FTC Act), 15 U.8.C. "45.
Plaintiff Federal Trade Commission and Defendants, advised by counsel, have agreed to
entry of this Stipulated Pinal Judgment and Order for Permanent Injunction (*Order”) by the
Court to resolve all matters in dispute in this action without trial.
FINDINGS
1. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this case and over

Defendants.
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. 2. The Complaint states claims upon which relief may be granted against Defendants

under ‘Scctions s and 13(b) of the FTC Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. §§ 45 and 53(b).

3. Entry of this Order is in the public interest.

4. Defendants enter into this Order freely and without coercion, and acknowledge
that they understand the provisions of this Order and are prepared to abide by them.

5. Venue in this district is proper under 28 U.S,C. § 1391 (b) and (c) and 15 U.S.C.
§ 53(b)-

6. The acts and practices of Defendants were or are in or affecting cominerce, as
«commerce” is defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act, 15 US.C. §44.

DEFINITIONS

For the purposes of this Order, the following definitions apply:

A.  “Bigsmart” means Bigsmart.com LL.C.andits subsidiaﬁcs or affiliates.

B. “Mark Tahiliani” means Mark Tazhiliani individually, and d/b/a Bigsmart.

C. “Harry Tahiliani” means Harry Tahiliani individually, and d/b/a Bigsmart.

D. “Defendants” collectively means Mark Tahiliani, Harry Tahiliani, and
Bigsmanrt.

E. “Consent Decree” means this Order.

F. “Settlement Agcee.ment“‘ means the agreement entered into between Plaintiff,

Defendants, and Harris Trust Bank that is incorporated by reference to this agreement and

attached hereto as Appendix A.

PHX- 153034 D160 1900132.3 2



M mmamr voa vy Eam A LAA VNV e
U YL LRANLILI N IOASANIILS A M LAV L \sad
——iande

e ————— —— e —— r——

L ARSANES ]

¥ . "
Vs et N a dasm AP RE AL Vive Mmwm AT w LR A

K. «Business Venture” means any written or oral business arrangement, however
denoﬁxinated, whether or not covered by 16 C.F R. Part436, that consists of the payment of
any consideration for: (1) the right or means to offer, sell, or distribute goads ot services
(whether or not jdentified by a trademark, service mark, trade name, advertising or other
commercial symbol); and (2) assistance to any person in connection with or incident to the
establishment, maintenance, or operation of a new business, or the entry by an existing
business into a new line or Type of business.

L. “Related Company” means any multilevel marketing company, in existence
on or before February 1, 2000, in which a Defendant is an owner, director. or managing
agent.

M.  “Current Eligible Consumer” means any current Bigsmart.com member who
at the time of entry of this Order: (1) owns or used to own one or more Bigsmart.com malls
purchased after May 15, 2000,; and/or (2) purchased aBigsmart.com ASP product to qualify
for Phase 1 commissions: (3) received a voluntary credit issued by Bigsmaert after May 15,
2000, as a result of the Maine Settlement, and used the credit to purchase an ASP product;

i and/or (4) received a voluntary credit issued by Bigsmart after May 15, 2000, as a result of
the Maine Settlement, which has either not been redeemed or has expired.

N.  “Mall Purchase Price” means the amounts paid for the mall, including any
application or set-up fee, less a pro-rata share of any hosting fee that has been used. The

pro-rata deduction shall not account for any part of the hosting fec used after January 1,

PHX:) 4307400500 1500132.3 4
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2001.
| 0. “Qualification Mall Purchase Price” means any monies paid to Bigsmart.com

relating 16 a Bigsmart.com shopping mall that qualified a Current Eligible Customer for
payment of commissions based on activating the mall or malls through the purchase of ASP -
products for participation in Phase II commissions.

P. “ASP furchasc Price” means any monies paid to Bigsmart.com for a
Bigsmart.com Application Service Provider (“ASP”) product listed in Appendix B.

Q. “Maine Settlernent” means the Consent Decres entered by the Maine Superior
Court in case No. CV-00-82 between the State of Maine and Bigsmart.com on May 15,

2000.

R. “Equity Receiver” mesns the receiver appointed pursuant to the Settlement

Agreement.
ORDER
Injunctive Relief
L

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that Defendents, their successors, assigns,
officers, servants, agents, employees and those persons in active concert or participation with
them who receive actusl notice of this Order by personal service or otherwise, arc
permanently restrained and enj oined from engaging, participating or assisting ip any manner

or capacily whatsoever, directly, or in concert with others, or through any business entity or

PLDC 153024 DOEOD, 1500132, 5



VU mam v

UJ/ £&£7 &VVAL 20U L w3 LA WWELE Ysx (A1

Ly e L L
DA VVLLL&IIVIDVU QUANLULYRDAAY L QLN LA

other device, in any Prohibited Marketing Scheme.
IL

ITS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants, their Successors, assigns, officers,

agents, servants, employees and distributors, and thosc persons in active concert or

participation with them who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service or
otherwise, in connection with the advertising, promoting, offering for salc, sale, or
distribution of any Business Venture are hercby permanently restraincd and enjoined from
making, expressly or by implication, directly or indirectly, orally or in writing, any false or
misleading statement or misrcpresentation of material fact, including but not limited to the
following: |

A.  Misrepresenting the potential earnings or income derived from such activity;

B. Misrepresenting the benefils any person participating in such an activity
actually can receive from such activity;

C. Misrepresenting the amount of sales a person actually made or can potentially
make through such activity; and

D. Misrepresenting the existence of salaried or hourly positions in order to recruit
djstributors or participants for any Prohibited Marketing Scheme or Multi-Level Marketing
Program.

l.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants, their successors, assigns, officers,

PEDZ 15304 001D0.1500132.) 6
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agents, servants, employees and distributors, and those persons in active concert or
paﬁi;ipation with them who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service or
otherwise; in connection with the advertising, promoting, offering for sale, sale, or
distribution of any Business Venture are hereby restrained and enjoined from assisting others
in the making, expressly or by implication, orally or in writing, any false or misleading
representation or omission of material fact.

V.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants, their successors and assigns, and
those persons in active concert or participation with them who receive actual potice of this
Order by personal service or otherwise, are restrained and enjoined from engaging,
participating or assisting in any manner or capacity whatsoever, directly, or in concert with
others, or through'any business entity or other device, in any Multi-Level Marketing
Program, except any Related Company, until the refunds have been paid fully from the
Redress Fund as described in this Order; provided, that if the Defendants operate any
Related Company, they shall pledge the stock of such company as security to the
Commission until the obligations under the Redress Fund are satisfied fully. Any stock
pledged pursuant to this provision secures Defendants’ obligation to fully fund the $5.0
million Redress Fund, as described below. |

V.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants, in connection with the advertising,

FHX: 1510)4.00100.1 50013323 7
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promoting, offering for sale, sale, or distribution of any Business Venture or Multi-Level
Mwﬁeting Program are permanently enjoined and restrained from:

A. Failing to take reasonable steps sufficient to monitor and ensure that all
Defendants’ agents, representatives, employses, ot independent contractors comply with
Paragraphs I, 11, IIl and IV of this Order. Reasonable steps shall include (a) establishing and
disseminating a wr‘iuen compliance program to all members, on a Web site, if there is one,
or to each individual representative, (b) spot-checking of representa ives and independent
contractors to ensure thatno misrepresentations have been made, (¢) ascertaining the nunber
of and nature of any consumer complaints and investigating, at a minimum, those that recite
violations of the written compliance procedures, {d) random monitoring of the Web sites of
representatives, and (e) to the extent feasible, blind testing the oral representations made by
any representative or independent contractor. Defendants shall, for a period of three (3)
years, submit to the Commission, on an annual basis, no later than fifteen (15) days after the
anniversary of the date of the entry of this Order, a summary report of compliance with this
Paragraph and, for the seven (7) years that follow, maintain records that will demonstrate

3 compliance with this Paragraph in the manner specified in Paragraph IX (Compliance).
These annual reports shall be submitt'ed to the Commission"s Associate Director for
Marketing Practices at the address listed in Paragraph XV.

B. Failing to investigate and address promptly any consumer complaint received

by Defendants, their successors, assigns, officers, agents, servants, and employees, and those

PHX:153634.00\00 15001323 8
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persons in active concert or participation wiih them who receive actual notice of this Order
regarciing any Multi-Level Marketing Program, Of ary aspect thereof, and 10 notify the
consumer-of the resolution of the complaint and the reason therefore.
V1.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that:
A. Sﬁbj ect to the exception set forth below, after the Redress Fund requirements
are satisfied, each of the Defendants, their SUCCessors and assigns, whether acting directly

or indircetly through any persons or cntities under such defendant's control, are hereby

VSRV e

permanently enjoined and restrained from engaging in or assisting others engaged in any

Multi-Level Marketing Program, unless, prior to engaging in or assisting others engaged in
such activities, such defendant first obtains a performance bond in the principal sum of .ﬁve
hundred thousimd dollars ($500,000). The terms and conditions of thc bond requirement
are as follows:

1. The bond shall be conditioned upon compliance with the provisions of
this Order and for any violations of Section 5(2) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(2) related
to this Order. The bond shall be deemed continuous and rernain in full force and effect as
long as such defendant is engaging in or assisting others engaged in any Maulti-Level
Marketing Program. Such defendant shall maintain the bond for a period of five (5) years
after such defendant has both ceased, and provided notice to the Commission that such

2ed
defendant has ceased,engaging in or assisting others engaged in any multi-level marketmg.

PIDC:) 51034,00100,1500132.3 9
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The bond shall cite this Order as the subject matter of the bond, and shall provide surety
thcréunder against financial loss resulting from whole or. partial failure of performance duc,
in whole or in part, to any violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act related to this Order, or
any provision of this Order, or to any other violation of law;

2, The bond required pursuant to this subparagraph shall be an insurance
agreement providing surety for financial loss issued by a surety company that is admitted to
do business in each state in which such defendant, or any entity directly or indirectly under
such defendant's control, is doing business and that holds a Federal Certificate of Authority
As Acceptable Surety On Federal Bond and Reinsuring. The bond shall be in favor of both:
(1) the Federal Trade Commission for the benefit of any consumer injured as aresult of any
activities that required obtaining the Bond; and (2) any consumer so injured;

3. The bond required pursuant to this subparagraph is in addition to, and
not in lieu of, any other bonds required by federal, state, or local law;

4. At least ten (10) days before commencing in any activity that requires
obtaining the bond, such defendant shall provide notice to the Commission describing in

X reasonable detail said activities, and include in such notice a cc;py of the bond obtained; and

5. Such defendant shall not disclose the existence of the bond 1o any
consumer without simultancously and conspicuously making the following disclosure inthe
same medium: “THE BOND IS REQUIRED BY ORDER OF THE U.S. DISTRICT

COURT AS PART OF A FINAL ORDER AGAINST [name of such defendant] in FTC v.

#HX:153034.00100 15001223 ]0



s A -
- “ e asaia VVEREmUTVOV

U AL RN A RS VAS RS RAr e s v

ol WL e

R

Bigsmart.com, L.L.C,, et al, Civ. Action No. __, U.S. District Court for the District of
Arizoﬁa.”

B.- | Notwithstanding the bond requircment set forth above, Defendants may
continue to operate any Related Company, but shall, within 6 months after the Redrcss Fund
requirements are satisfied, provide a performance bond of $250,000. During that 6 month
period and until a $250,000 bond is provided, the Commission will continue to hold the
stock of any such Related Company as sccurity ﬁnder tiJe same terms and conditions set forth
in Paragraph V1, subparagraph A(1) - (5), in lien of the $250,000 bond required by this
subparagraph.

Monetsa! elief
Vil

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants, their successors and assigns, jointly
and severally, shall pay redress to coﬁsumezs, on the terms specified below, by means of
refunds and credits in an amount not to exceed $5.0 Million (“Redress Fund™). This sum
shall be used to (1) provide redress to all Current Eligible Customers who request refinds
under the procedures described below, and (2) to pay all attendant expenses of administering
the redress progratm.

A.  TheRedress Fund shall consist of an escrow account created and administered
by the Equity Receiver. The Redress Fund shall initially receive $3.3 million 1o be funded

& follows. Ten (10) days after entry of this Order: 1) Defendants shall assign to Plaintitf all

PHX!147034.00300,) 50092 ¥ 11



U/ e/ VA AD 2 L3O VVLLLIDUIU

_ WUARLDOXDONAV L QL0 LV

Vs bkt UL LLIU L s A nbeth Ve AR AT

of their rights to the $3.1 million of Defendants’ funds currently held in bank credit reserves
for réﬁmds for Bigsmart independent members' purchases; said funds shall be transferred
to the Redress Fund in accordance with the Settlement Agreement; and 2) Defendants shall
transfer to the Redress Fund an additional $200,000. Additional payments ghall be paid into
escrow for the Redress Fund, as necessary to pay refund requests, on the following terms
and conditions: |

1. Six (6) months after entry' of this Order, Defendants shall deposit an
additional payment of $500,000 into the escrow account, if, as determined by the Equity
Receiver, such funds are needed to meet requested claims for redress;

2. Twelve (12) months after entry of this Order, Defendants shall deposit
an additional payment of $500,000 into (he escrow account, if, as determined by the Equity
Receiver, such funds are needed to meet requested claims for redress; and

3. Eighteen (18) months after entry of this Order, Defendants shall deposit
an additional payment of $700,000 into the escrow account, if, as determined by the Equity
Receiver, such funds are needed to meet requested claims for redress.

3 B. ‘I'he Redress Fund shall be administered by a court-gppointed Equity Rectiver.
To effectuate the process:

1. At the same time as the filing of this agreement, the parties shall apply

to the Court for the appointment of an Equity Receiver with the full power necessary to

effectuate this agreement and the Settlement Agreement.

PIDG1$1034,00100 15001322 ]2
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2. Within 10 (ten) business days after the date of issuance of this order,
Defendants shall deliver to both the Commission and the Equity Receiver, on magnetic tape
ot other electronic medium, the following data concerning all Current Eligible Customers:
name; last known mailing address; customer numbez‘; the amount of any Mall Purchase Price
paid, if any; the amount of ASP Purchase Price as defined above, if any; and the amount of
any commissions, refunds or other monies paid by Bigsmart.com to the Current Eligible
Customer.

3. Defendants shall also provide, as quickly as feasible but no later than
ten (10) business days after receiving a written request, any additional information that
Equity Receiver reasonably needs to carry out the redress program described herein.
Defendants shall deliver all data and information described in this pardgraph to the Equity
Receiver in a clean format compatible with the Equity Receiver's computers.

4. The Redress Fund shall be uscd to provide a refund to all Current
Eligible Customers who request a refund equal to the Mall Purchase Price and/or

'Qualification Mall Purchase Price, Icss any monies paid and credits issued by Bigsmart.com

v. to any Current Eligible Customert, providcd the voluntary cg.-edit issued by Bigsmart after
May 15, 2000, to a Current Eligible Customer shall not be uscd to reduce the amount of
refund owed to the extent the credit was used to purchase an ASP product as reflected in
Appendix “B™ .or has either not been redeemed or expired.

5. Within twenty (20) days of the date ofissuance of this Qrder, the Equity

PLDC.157034 DUEDO 1500133.3 13
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Receiver shall update the last known addresses of members through the National Change
of Address system, and as soon as possible thereafier shall notify Current Eligible
Consumezs of their right to a refund. Cuirent Eligible Customers must request refunds
within forty-five (45) days afier the date of the Equity Receiver's notification of the
entitlement to arefund and, accordingly, such refund requests must bereceived no lamer than
fifty-five (55) days after notification.

6. The Equity Receiver, in bis or her discretion, shall pay refunds in 2
manner and schedule designed to provide refunds, either full or partial, to the greatest
number of Current Eligible Customers that request refunds within the forty-five (45) day
period, provided that, should the total amount in the Redress Fund not be adequate to pay
all eligible requests under this Order, the Equity Receiver shall use best efforts. in his or her
discretion, to achieve the goal of making pro rata refunds to eligible consumers.

7. Administrative expenses and other fces charged by the Equity Receiver
will be deducted from the Redress Fund. The Equity Receiver shall pay the agreed-upon

attorneys’ fees and investigative costs incurred by the State of Texas and State of Wisconsin

v

that they have incurred in this investigation and their assistance of the FTC in its
investigation as soon as funds to do so become available in the Redress Fund,

C. If, after eighteen (18) mqnths after entry of this Order, or before if applicable,
the Equity Receiver determines that all valid refund requests have been satisfied from

available monies in the Redrcss Fund, the Eqﬁity Receiver shall return to Defendants any

PHX143034.00100,15001 )23 14
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of the funds they contributed that arc still being held in the escrow account as well as any
interest that has accrued on these funds.
. - vm'

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED that the Court's approval of this Order is expressly
premised upon the truthfulness, accuracy, and complctenéss of complete sworn financial
statements that Defendants submit upon exection of this Order to the Associate Director
for Marketing Practices at the address listed in Paragraph XV. If, upon motion, this Court
finds that in their sworn financial statements, Defendants have made a material
misrepresentation or omission understating their net worth, then the Court shall enter a
modified judgment helding Defendants jointly and severally liable to the Commiﬁsion for
éonsumer redress (or the difference between the declared and actual nét worth.

0 jance
IX.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants, for a period of ten (10) years from
the date of entry of this Order, when acting in & commercial capacity as an individual or in
connection with any entity in which any defendant has an ownership interest or is a director,
officer (or comparable position with a non-cotporate entity), or is a person who formulates
policies or procedures, are hereby restrained and enjoined from failing to create, maintain
and make available 1o representatives of the Commission, upon reasonable notice:

A. Baoks, records and accounts which, in reasonable detsil, accurately and fairly

#30¢:153034.00100 15001323 15



Mot/ pdas dmWh AL Lty Pr

4 e dtat e S v e = i v = -

4Aadia vwa UL 4L

reflect the income, disbursements, transactions and usc of monies;
| B.  Records accurately reflecting the name, address, and phone number of cach
employee; or independent contractor ofany Defendant, that person's job title or position, the
date upon which thc person commenced work, and the date and reason for his or her
termination, if applicable. Defendants shall retain such records for any terminated person
for a period of 1;wo years following the date of termination;
C.  Records containing thenames, addresses, and phone numbers of all consumers
10 whom Defendants have sold, invoiced, or shipped any products or services, whether on
their own behalf or that of any third party;
D. Records that, for every consumer complaint or refund request, whether
received directly or indirectly or through any third party, reflect:
1. The consumer's name, address, telephone number and the dollar amount
paid by the consumer;
2. The written complaint, if any, and the date of the comp!laint or refund
request,
3. The basis of the complaint and the nature and the result of any
investigation conducted as to the validity of any complaint;
4, Bach response by Defendants, their agents, servants, and employces,
and those persons in active concert or participation and the date of the response;

5. Any final resolution and the date of the resolution; and

PHOC 153034,00100. 15601383 16
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6. In the event of a denial by Defendants, their agents, servants, and
empléyecs, and those persons in active concert or participation of a refund request, the
reason forsuch denial, or if cured, the basis for determining that such complaint has been
cured,

E. Records relating to all Bﬁsincss Ventures undertaken by Defendants, their
agents, servants, and employees, and thosc persons in active concert or participation with
them, that involve any type of marketing program including, but not limited to, group or
mdividual meétings, telemarketing, Web sites, commercial electronic mail, infomercials or
other television or radio advertising, or direct mail, including but not limited to copies of all
confraclts or agreements bctween Defendants, their agents, servants, employees and
distributors, and those persons in active concert or participation and any sales company, mail
house, printer, Internet service provider, information provider, telephone company,
television or radio slation, or other person through whom Defendants, their agents, servants,
employees and distributors, and those persons in active concert or participation advertises
or promotes products or services, as well as copies of all advcniéements, Web pages,
commercial electronic mail, or promotional materials utilized mn such ventures; and

F.  Copies of all sales scripts. training materials, advertisements or other
marketing materials utilized, provided that copies of all sales scripts, training materials,
advertisements or other materials shall be rctained by Defendants for ten (10) years after the

last date of disscmination or use,

PIEX:153034.00100,1 500172 17
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for a period of ten (1.0) years from the date of
entry of this Order, for purposes of determining or securing compliance with this Order,
Defendaxits and any Business Venture that they now or come to own, operate or control,
shall permit representatives of the Commission upon reasonable written notice:

A. Access during normal office hours to amy office or business facility in which
documents relating to compliance with the terms of this Order are stored or held, to inspect
and copy such docxlxments; and

B. To interview curremt officers, directors, independent contractors, and
employess of any entity directly or indirectly under Defendants® coptrol or under common

| control with them, relatiné to compliance with the terms of this Order without restraint or
interference from Defendants at a location rcasonably convenient to Defendants and the
person to be interviewed. The petson interviewed inay have counsel present.

Provided that, upon application of the Commission and for good cause shown, the
Court may enter an ex parfe order granting immediate access 1o Defendants” business

i premises for the puiposc of inspecting and copying all documents relevant to any matter
contained in this Order.

Provided further, that plaintiff may otherwise monitor each Defendant’s compliance
with this Order by all lawful means available, including: (1) the use of investigators or other

representatives of the Commission posing as consumers and suppliers of Defendants, thewr

#418.15304 001DG. 15001 32,3 . 18
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employees or any entity which any Defendant owns, operates or controls, without the
necessity of prior identification or notice; (2) without farther leave of Court, to obtain

discoveryas provided by Rules 26-37 of the Kederal Rules of Civil Procedure, including the

use of compulsory process pursuant to Federsl Rules of Civil Procedure 45; and (3) theuse -

of compulsory process pursuant to Scctions 9 and 20 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 49 and
57b-1, to investigate whether either Defendant has violated any provision of this Order or

Section § of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45.

XI.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants, for a period of ten (10) years from
entry of this Order, shall give written notice to the Commission of their affiliation or
employment with any business entity within twenty-one (21) days of the commencement of
| such affiliation or employment at the address listed in Paragraph XV. Such notice shall
include the new business name and address, a statement of the nature of the business, and
a summary of his or her position and responsibilities with the business.

XILI.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants, for a period of ten (10) years from
the datc of entry of this Order, for the purposes of determining or securing compliance with
this Order, when acﬁﬁg in a commercial capacity as an individual orin connection with any

entity in which any Defendant has an ownership interest or is a director, officer (or

PIX; 153034 00100.15001323 10
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comparable position with a non-corparate entity), or is a person who formulates policies or
procédures, shall, within. sixty (60) days of a written request ﬁ'c;m the Commission:

A."  File with the Commission a statement containing the names of the media in
or on which the defendant, the defendant’s agents, representatives, servants, employees,
salespersons, or those of any corporations, trusts, or persons or other entities managed or
controlled in whole or in part by the defendant, have placed édvcrtisementS, the months
during which those advertisements were published or broadcast, the caller paid and/or toll-
free telephone numbers utilized in furtherance of the sale of products and services, the URL
of all Web sites utilized in furtherance of the sale of products and services, and the local
carriers and/or telephone service common carriers utilized in furtherance of any
telemarketing or teleconferencing activities; and

B. Produce any requested marketing materials used in the advertising, promoting,
offering for sale, sale, or distribution of any product or service sold or offered for sale by any
Defendant, each of their successors or assigns, agents, representatives, or affiliates.

XIIL
% IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that:

A.  For a period of ten (10) years from the date of this Order, Defendants will
provide to all new owners, directors, and managing agents, including the President and
corporate officers, of Bigsmart. 2 copy of this Order and shall obtain a signed

acknowledgment of receipt within thirty (30) days of their employment or election, as the

PHXC [33034.00100.1500132.2 20
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case may be.

"B.  For a period of five (5) years from the date of this Order, Defendants will
provide ta all new owners, directors, managing agents and corporate officers (a) of any
comrnercial entity in which any defendant has 25% or greater ownexship interest, or (®) of
any MM eatity in which any defendant is an officer, director, or is a person who formulates
policics, a copy of the key prohibitions and affirmative requirements of this Order, which
must include paragraphs I, I, 111, IV, V, VI, IX, X, XIT and XII1.

1. Within thirty (30) days ‘from the date of this Order, Defendants will
provide a copy of the key prohibitions and afgc’rrgative requirements of this Order, which
must include Paragraphs II, Il and XIH—:;ach Bigsmart mall owner as of the date of the
Order. Defendants may, at their option, send this notice to each mell owner’s registered e-
mail address.

2. For a period of five (5) years from the date of this Order, Defendants
will post the Order provisions listed in subsection B(1) of this paragraph, clearly and
conspicuoustly, in the section of its Web site that all new membeys are required to read and
acknowledge.

C.  For a period of threc (3) years from the date of this Order, Defendants shall
send to cach representative of a Related Company by c-mail or first class mail, ar
Defendants’ option, the Order provisions listed in subsection B(1) of this paragraph.

D.  Defendants may send, post or provide such other provisions ofthis Order they

PIIX-153034.00100 1500132.3 21
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decm apprapriate in addition to the ones specified in this paragraph.

ITAS FURTHER ORDERED that the expitation of any requirement imposed by
this Order shall not affect any other obligation arising under this Order. Each party shall
bear its own costs and attorney's fees.

. .

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants shall submit any information,
notifications, or reports required by this‘ Order to: Associate Director for Marketing
Practices, Federal Trade Commission, 600 Pmngylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, DC
20580, or at such futurc address as the Commission may designate in writing to Defendants.

XVL
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, that no portion of the payment as herein provided
shall be deemed a payment of any fine, penalty, forfeiture, or punitive asscssment and this
Order shall not be construed as an admission or finding of guilt.
XVIL

The partics hereby stipulate and agree, without further notice to any of them, to entry
of the foregoing order, which shall constitute a final judgment in this actfon. Defendants
hereby waive any claim they may have under the Equal Access to Justice Act, 28 U.S.C. §
2412, amended by PL 104-121, 110 Stat. 847, 863-64 (1996), concerning the prosecution

of this action to the date of this Order.

PHX:153034.00100.1500132 Y 22
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XVIIIL.

‘ IT IS. FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants shall execute, have notarized and
retan to-the Commission at the address listed in Paragraph XV a signed, dated
acknowledgment of receipt of a date-stamped copy of this Order within five (5) days of their
receipt of the date-starmnped copy of this Order. |

XIX..

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that should Defendants fail to comply with any
deadline for reporting information to the Commission pursuant to this order, the
Commission shall provide written notice of that failure to the Defendants and shall not file
any motion for contemnpt \ml;:ss Defendants fail to comply within 10 days of mailing such
notice to the last address provided to the Commission by Defendants. -

XX,

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, that this Court shall retain jurisdiction of this matter
for all purposes.

There being no just cause for delay, this Stipulated Final Judgment and Order for a

Permanent Injunction as to Defendants Bigsmart, Mark Tahiliani, and Harry Tahiliani is
APPRIVED , SSrTes And>

hereby,entered this ¢ day of /A=Zeq 2001 4 THE C TRy 1S Dy RESTEDTY

ErTTEANT VDG MET) ACBOED St /
NG

J):ﬁge, United States District Col

PIUX 132034.00100.1500172 23
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DEFENDANTS N

By:

Big.;;m coinML.L.C.
1201 h Alma Schoo) Road
Meza,

By: \ ‘
Mark Tahdfidni
ma Fr:hoo] Road

By:

By:

Barry J. Cufl
Buker & Hosfterler
Washinglon Square, Suite 1100
1050 Connecticut Avenue NW

Washington, D.C. 20036-5304
(202) 861-1572

Counsel for Defendants

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

By: Iu«/\;ﬁ(‘éﬁb

David Fix

James Davis

600 Pennsylvania Avenuae, N.W,
Washingtory, D.C, 20580

Counsel for Plaintiff

PHX:153034.00100,1500132.1

/f/

of |z ]e|

Date

0/ /2 Jey

Date

ozﬂé 23 /e

sl

‘Date

. Dare

uuuuuuu



VD / Lbar VL 4. 20 AL VDULLLTODDU

v et e s amm= et

.t vV VT e moa

APP

Asset Watcher - BSB Vah}e 200
Run Point - BSB Value 200

My Tomorrows - BSB Valuc 200

Right Budget - BSB Value 200
Family Dawn - BSB Value 200

Zoneway - BSB Value 200

Sandy Botkin USA and Canada Tapes - From September 24, 2000 forward, 100

points
Metabolic Diet 4-Pak ~ 200 BSB value.

Violet Mirrored Lens Sunglasses,

QUANLEDOGKLDNAY I Jinolivi

Points 100

Points 100

Points 100

Points 100
Points 100

Points 100

WIULO
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SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT
This Settlement Agreement is._madc this 14th day of _Februaw. 200} by and umong the

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION (the “F7C"), BIGSMART.COM L.L.C. ("Bigsmart™) and HARRIS
TRUST AND SAVINGS BANK (“Farris™).

WHEREAS, Bigsmart is engaged in the business of froviding goods and/or services over
the internet o customers and aceepts credit and/or debit cards (the “Cards ™), such 85 Visa and
MasterCard (the "Card Assoclations™), for peyment for such goods and/or services (coliectively,
“Goods/Services™).1 _

WHEREAS, Hatvis is engaged in the business of providing for a fee electronic debit and
credit card avthorization, processing. data capuire, deposit, and clearing and settlemnent services.

WHEREAS, Harris and Bjgsmarn catered into that ;:crtain Merchant Services Agreement
(the "Merchant Agreement”) as of December 22, 1999, pursuant 10 which Haeris agreed to
provide certain rgerchant banking services as set forth therein (0 Bigsmart.

WHEREAS, Harris processed the Card charges for eanain Goodsls.ervices for tﬁ: umc
pcriod December 22, 1999 to late Sepiember 2000 (the “Applicable Period™) pursuant to the
Meichant Agreement in an amount lolaling approximately $23 million.

WHEREAS, a reserve account was established pursuant to paragraph 4 of the Merchant
Agreement (the “Reserve Accownt ™) into which Bigsman was obllgated (o deposit funds 1o cover
refund trapsactions and chargebacks relating to, infer alia, chargebacks for Goods/Scrvices.

WHEREAS, the balance in the Reserve Account is approximately $2.7 million (the
“Reserve Account Balance™). provided, however, thal the Reserve Account Ralance may be

subject to possible redvctions by Harris as a result of its administration of the Reserve Account

Copitalized teyms nbl defincd herein shall have the same meanings as ascribed (o such termns in the Consent
Degrec.

1178555 01,088
1533231
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as set forth herein and its recovery of certain reasonable fees and expenses incurred by Harris
(the “Harris Expenses™), provided.-j'ilnher. that Harris shal) provide written notice of the Hamis
Expenses 10 the FTC, Bigsman, and the Equity Receiver a;ad any objections 10 payment of the
Harris-Expenses shall be submitted for rev.iew by the District Cournt within five (S5) days after
receiving notice of such Harris Expenscs; otherwise, payment of the Harris Expenses shall be
dezmed allowed and shull be made in full on or before ten (10) days after receipt of notice, and
provided, further, that solely for purposes of the performance of their obligations 1o the FTC
vnder the Consent Decree, and withont hereby creating any obligation of Harris under this
Setilement Agreement, the Consent Decree, or otherwise, Bigsmart and the other Defendants
under the Consent Decree shall be deemed to receive credit thereunder for whatever amount is
actually held by Harris in the Reserve Account on the date of execution of this Sertlement
Agreernent or $2.7 million, whichever amouar is greater.

WHEREAS, Harris states that it was granted ﬁnder the Merchant Agreement a valid senior
first perfected security interast in all fonds in the Reserve Accovnt as collateral for its obligations
1o fund chergebacks and refunds pursuant to the Merchant Agreement end, 2s part of thc
consideration for this Sewlzment Agrcement and compliance and performance hereonder by
Harris, the other parties herelo stipulate that they have not asseried any dispute and do not
dispute the validiiy and perfection of such security inlerest,

WHEREAS, the FTC has filed a Complaint against Bigsmart and others alleging cenoin
conduct relating 1o Bigsmant's business practices

WHEREAS, the FTC, Bigsmart and other parties have pegotiated a Stipulated Final
Judgmen! and Order for a Permanent Injunction (the “Consent Decree™), pursuant 1o which a
“Redress Fund™ will be created to pay refunds of certain amounis, as described in and cajculated

pursuant to the Consent Decres and this Scttlement Agreement.



A Nt o v e e —— o ——

WHEREAS, the Redress Fond sswblished by the Consent Decree will be administered by
an “Equity Receiver™ as sct forth in the Consent Decree and this Setlement Agreement and is 10
be pantially fonded with the funds contained in the Reserve Account (subject 1o the possihle
reduetions coniemplated herein, including pu)lomenl of the Harris Expensas) when the conditions
precedent stated herein have been satisfied or have been determined to be satisfied by the District
Cournt if there is any dispute.

WHEREAS, the parties to this Settlement Agreement, subject 10 tbe terms and condirions
of this Seilement Agreement and the Consent Decree, wonl 1o provide out of the Reserve
Account a source of payment for allowed claims of credu card holders which are defined below
as the “Harris Eligible Claims,” including, but not necessarily limited to, such claims of those
who are "Curreru Eligible Custiomers,* as such term is defined b the Consem Decree and
modified herein as stated in condition C.(i) below, and to protect the interests of Barris from
multiple liabilities, as well as to those Customers, Exchanges. and/or Issuing Banks (as these
termns are defined below) who mmay be entitled to recejve refunds and/or chatgebacks pursuant o
paragraph 4 of the Merchant Agreement to the extent that they hold any actual and allowable
refund and/er chargeback claims.

Now. THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of
whith are heteby acknawledged, and svbject to the stipulations and acknowledgements sialed

throughout the foregoing recitals (all of which are inc orporated herein), the parties hereto agree

as Follows:
1. CONDITIONS TO HARRIS'S AGREEMENT TO TRANSFER RESERVE ACCOUNT BALANCETO
REDRESS FUND:

A. () Prior to the entry of the Consent Decree by the District Court and the occurrence
of the Determination Date (as defined below), the Reserve Account Balance shall remain in the

Reserve Account at Harris and subjzct o the lien and security interest of Harris, and shall be

-3~
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administered by Harris pursuant to the terms of the Merchant Agreemem and subject to the terms
of this Seilement Agreement, the Consent Decree, and any Order of the District Court approving
lﬁis Seidement Agreement
(i) On and aftar the entry of the Consent Decree and any Order of the Distnct Coun
approving this Senlement Agreement, and pending the occurrence of the Delermination Date
(defined below), the Reserve Account Balance shall be administered by Harris 1o the exient
legally possiblc in compliance with the redress formula establishled by the Conscht Decree and
this Settlement Agreement and subject to:
(a) the exercise of all credits and offsets permitied by the Conseat Decree and
this Settlement Agreement; and
(b) (be assertion by Haimis (solely at the direcrion of Bigsmast hereby given to
Harris and to the exteht legally possibie) of all defenses stated in wriling by Bigsman
regarding a particular claim or category of claims, as permitied by the Consent Decree,
including, but not Jimited to, a defense that: (w) thercis a nan-refondable portion of fees
pursbant to Bigsmart policizs; (x) there are commissions received by a Customer of
Bigsmart which offsct the amount of any refund or chargeback; (y) there is a pro raia
redvetion in the amount of any refond or chargeback attribotable 10 any use or benefit of
Goods/Services received from Bigsmart by any of jts Custamers; and (2) cardholders
enlering into agreements with Bigsmart during the Applicable Period, and choosing (o
receive product credits rather than refunds afier that date, have waived. bave clected not
to assert, or are estopped from asscning their disputed refund and/or chargeback clnims,
or that any enforceable Iimitation of action m:uder any applicable statute, regolation,
agreement, or order has expired (collectively, all of Bigsman's credits, offscis, and

defenses described above end any others that are asserted by Bigsmart as being gvailable
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at lsw or in equity are defined herein as the “Defenses™). Such Defenses shall be
asserted and reserved for Bigsmart and the Equity Receiver by all parties hercto,
including Harris, after the District Court's approval of the Consenl Decree and this

Sculement Agreement and pending the occurrence of the Deiermination Date (defined

below), On and afier the Dctcrminaiion Dale (defined below), the identification,

preservation, and assertion of all such Defenses shall become the responsibility of

Bigsmart and the Equity Receiver and Hartis shall have all benefits of this Settlement

Agresment and any necessary or appropriate Qrdets of the District Ceurt.

B. On and after both the entry of the Consent Decree by the Distriet Court and the
occurrence of the Determination Date (defined below), Hamis agrees to transfer the Reserve
Account Balance 1o the Redress Fund for administration by the Equity Receiver pursuant to the
terms of this Senlement Agreement and the Consent Decree, provided. however, that the
following conditions precedent set forth in subparagraphs C.(i) through C.(xii) below are
fulfilled in their entirety and subject to the complete satisfaction of Harris, which shall not be
unreasonably withheld. If Harris asserts that any of the specified conditions precedent has not
been fulfilled, Harris shall specify in writing each unsatisfied condition and the other partes
hereto (or either of them) shall have fificen (15) days 10 request whatever furiher Order of the
Disirict Court may be necessary or appropriale 1o cure each such vnsatisfied condjlon and
thereby provide any necessary or appropriate prolection of the interests of Harris, provided,
however, that the foregoing shall not preclude ihe other parties hereto (or either of them) from

disputing eny such assertion by Harris and requesting an Order of the District Court adjudicating

.that any or all conditions precedent have been satisfied, The “Dererminarion Dare” shall mean

the date by which all of the following have collectively occurred:
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() 3l chargeback and Refund claims of Current Eligible Customers of
Bigsmart (as such lerm is d-c“fh'ncd in the Conzent De::rec and ynodified herein as stated in
condition C.(i) below) have been determined by the ﬁq\my Receiver o be eligible claims
5n accordance with the Consent Dem:ee and this Setticment Agreement {such dclcrmined
eligible claims fdr Refunds which the Equity Receiver belisves allowable and payable
from the Radress Fund in accordance with the Consent Decree and 1his Secttlement
Agreement 10 be referred 1o in rhis Sertlement Agreement as the “Harris Eligible
Clairms") and Harris has received written notice of the amount of the Harris Eligible
Claims from the Equity Recejver;

GI) all Ordcts of the District Coun applicable 1o this Setflement Agreement,
including the Consent Decres, have bedome final and non-sppealable under applicable

Jaw; and

Gii) all releases of Haryis contemplated herein have become effective pursuant 1o

the terms of this Settlement AgreemenL

Nothing herein shall precivde the Bguity Recciver from temporarily allowing and then
geguestering amounts sufficient 1o cover disputed clsims of Current Eligible Customers,
including such claims which are Hz}rris Eligible Claims, provided, however, that all Defenses
shall be asseried and claimed in the process of nltimatcly allowing or disallowing such claims.
Unless the context otherwise expressly requires, references 10 the Consent Decree herein shall be
deemed 10 include, without limitation, any ether Orders of the District Court applicable 1o,
approving, or implernenting this Seulement Agreement. 1 is the understanding and agreement of
the paniges that this SettJement Apgreement will be presented for approval by Order of the District
Court simultaneously with the Consent Decyee; and that the procedures and powers thep

applicable to the Equity Receiver and the Redrass Fund will be those (or substantially those) of 2

-6-
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federal equity receiver (o Lhe extent of adrmninistration of the Redress Fund and a)) epplicable
c;aims novificatjion, aljowance, .;ﬁ“sallown'ncc, bar, discflarge. and injuncuon procedures,
provided, however, that Lhe Equity Receiver shall not be a{:poinlcd. dirceted, or empowered to
operalé’of Ianage any continving or fulure l;;:sine_%s of Bigsmart.

C. The following are the conditions precedent to any ransfer of the Reserve Account
Bslzahce by Harris upon the Delermination Date, al] of such conditions precedent being hereby
expressly incorporated by reference in the Consent Decree!

() The term "Current Eligible Customer” in the Consent Decree shall be
modified, by any Order(s) of the Distriet Count approving and implementing this
Settlement Agreement, lo include, for the purposes of this Settlement Agreement and the
enforcement of the Consent Decree and any other Osder(s) of the Distriet Court
approving and implementing this Settlement Apgreement, and for the protection of the
interests of Hartis provided hercin, all of the following: (a) any customer of Bigsmart or
Card holder (0 whom Harris may be Jiable upder the Merchant Agreement, includliné. but
nol limited 1o, any customet of Bigsmart or Card holder who is or may be entitled 1o
reccive any chargeback or other refund pursuant 10 paragraph 4 of the Merchani
Agreement s a result of any credit card purchase made from Bigsmart for any
Goods/Services during (he Applicable Period or liability under the Processing Agreement

as sUCh Yerm is defincd berein (herein for the purposes of this Setlemnent Agreement

defined as a "Refund™) (for the purposes of this Sculement Agreement, such person'

jdentified in this subparagraph (a). including any Card holder, shall be referred 10 as 2
“Custorner™). (b) any bank that issved any Card 1o any Customer that was uscd for any
such purchase and would be entitled to receive the amount of any Refund from Harris

pursuant (o the Merchant Agreement or to which Harris may be lizble under the Merchant

.7-
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Agpreement (an “Jssuing Bank™): and (c) any exchanges and Card Associations applicable
10 any such Cusiomers, nan.';e-]y Visa and MasterCard, or (o which Harris may be Jiable
under the Mérchant Agreement and. ip nddiﬁo;:. First Data Mcerchant Services
Corporation ("FDMS") or any :ucce.ssor who provides services similar 1o FDMS under
the Processing Agreement dated as of April 21. 1998 betewen Harris and FDMS and any
amendments or Fuccessor agrecments thereto (the “Processing Agreement") (hereinaficr
collectively refermed to as the “Exchanges *)- Nothiﬁg in this provision or elsewhere in
this Settlement Agreement shall preclude or limit in any Way the right of any of the
parties her=to, or the Equity Recelver, to assest any of g1l Defenses against any Current
Eligible Customer, including. but not Jimited to, and for purposes of thix Settlement
Agreement, the holder of any Harris Eligible Claim. such thal the amount actually
allowable as a valid claim of any such individus] or cntity may be zero (o) dollars.

(i) Bigsmart, the FTC, and the Equity Receiver shall obtain the District Coun's
approval of appropriate ferms of notice (the “Notice™) and proof of claim (tbc “Proof of
Claim*), The Notice and the Proof of Claim and the District Court’s Order approving
such materials and preseribing notice procedures shall be reasonably acceptable to Harris |
in [orm and substance, which a-cceplnnc: Barris shall not witbhold unreasonably, in crder
{0 ensure thar pursuant Lo the District Court's Order, the Notice and the Proof of Claim
are provided duly and propesly 1o Customers. Exchanges, and Issving Banks which are o7
may be entitled thereta, including, but not limited 1o, any, Current Eligible Cumomers that
are or may be entitled 10 2 Refund, provided, however, that approval of the Nouce, the
Proof of Claim, and all applicable notice procedures shall be ultimately the decision of

the District Court if the pariies 10 this Settlement Agreement do not agrec. The Notice
shall:
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(@) specifically and expressly state that guch Customer’s. Exchange's,
and/or Issuing Bank's-sole 2nd exclusive right to receive any Refund shall be to
comply with the procedures set forth in the Consent Decree and this Settlement
Agreement 1o obtain paymcr-n from the Redress Fund (subject to paragraph 2
below) and that failure to comply shall: (i) be deemed a waiver of all rights of
such Customet, Exchange, and/or Issuing Bank to se=k a Refund (including any

. other king of claim or chargeback), or to enforce any rights or obligations under
the Merchant Agreement, including, but not Jimited -lo, paragraph 4 thereof; and
i) subject such Customer, Exchange, and/or Issuing Bank to the permansnt
injunction provisions set forth in this Settlement Agreement and the Consent
Decree upon the occurrence of the Claims Bar Date as set forth below;

() specify that any Customer, Exchange, and/or lssuing Bank that
submits a claim for a Refond (including any Harris Eligible Claim) shall be
deemed pursuant to the Consent Decree pnd this Scitlement Agreement. by
submitling such claim and thereby electing to receive any payment from the
Redress Fund on acconnt of such Refund (including uny Harris Eligible Claim). to
have elecled to wajve any and all rights, claims, and causes of action apainst
Harris and Bigsrnarnt arising from any and all ansactions with Big'smzm which
are the subject of this Settlement Agreement, and that such receipt of any payment
from the Redress Fund shall constitute s full end complete release by such
Customsr, Exchange, and/or 1ssuing Bank of Harris and Bigsmast for any and all
claims and causes of action against Harjs and Bigsman arising from any and all

transactions with Bigsmart which arc the subject of this Settlement Agreeiment;

and
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(c) state that-all claimants shall be either barred and their claims
disallowed (if they f;i'l'.lo make 2 claim) or bound Gf they make a ¢laim) by the
forapoing lerms. ' ,

The Notice and Proof of Claim forms approved by the District Court shal] be disscminated
by the Equity Receiver, with the assistance of Bigsmart, to every Current Eligible
Custosmner (as that term has been modified by condation C.(1) herein), it being undersiond
that, to the full extent possible and in order to reduce administrative expenses Wherever
possible, the notice and claims process, and the Equity Recejver’s determination(s) of
allowable (or temporarily allowable) claims and notification(s) thereaf, may be done by
compulerized electronic ransmission(s), such that electronic poticing shal) be a preferred
and presumptively valid method of noticing under the circomstances presemed here and
shall be entitled to an equal presumption of walid and proper notice and service with first
class United States mail and any approved alternative method of providing notice and
service. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing berein shall prohibit any other notce
procedures, including, without limitation, initial notice by first class United States mail, 2
request in the Proof of Claim form for & funcioning e~mail address, and the future conduct
of any or all proceedings and communications clectronically if and when spch information
is provided. The Equity Receiver's compliance with the notice procedures stated herein
and in the Consent Decree shall be deemed 10 conslitute proper and effective notice ta ull
Cusiomers, Issuing Banks, and/or Exchanges of their sights end remedies and of the
injunctive and bar provisions contained in the Consent Decree and this Settlement
Agreement,

Gii) Any Order(s) of the District Court approving and implementing this

Settlement Agresment shall specifically provide that after the time period for which any

-10-
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Customer, Jssuing Bank, and/or Exchange may submil a pProof of Claim has expired, the
Equity Recciver shall detefmine the aggregate amount of the Harris Eligible Claims, as
well as the amnounts thereof which the Equity Recelver believes should be allowed, and

be allowed amovnts of any other claims of Current Ellgible Customers; and the Equity

Receiver shall provide written notice of all of the foregoing to all of the parties to this

Seulement Agreement within five (5) days after such determination. Any pany to this
Serderneny Agrcgmcm sball bave seven (7) days after receiving such notice 1o object 1o
the Equity Receiver's delenmination in writing, Whereupon any such objection, if not
resolved by the paries, shall be beard as soon as practicable by the District Coun. 1f
there is no objection 1o the Equity Receiver’s determination, o7 if the pariies resolve any
such objection or the District Coun decides any such objectiéu, the result shall be, and
hereby is, stipulated by the parties to be final, binding, and conclusrve.

(V) Any Order(s) of the District Count 2pproving and implementing this
Seulement Agreement shall specifically provide that upon the vransfer of the Reserve
Account Balanees (o the Redress Fund pursuant to this Sctdement Agreement and the
Consent Decree on or aficr the Determination Dale: (i) the Reserve Account Balance
shall, pursnant 10 paragraph 2 below, be first used 10 pay any allowed Harnis Expenses
and then to pay allowed Harris Eligible Claims; (ii) Hagris shall have (on and afier the
date of execution of this Settlement Agreement) no Jiability to any Issuing Bank.
‘Exchange, and/or Customer for any Harris Eligible Claim, Refund, or Cha;gc'bac]:, or any
deficiency lfmcn:in. or for eaforcement of any rights or obligations under the Mcrchant
Agreement, including, but not limijted to, paragrapl; 4 thereof or the Processing
Agreement, and (iii) the rights of any Issuing Bank, Exchange, and/or Cusiomer to

reccive any Refund (or any other payment of any kind) on account of any Harris Eligible

~11-
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Claimn or uny other claim or right 1o receive & Refund shall be solely governed by the
Consent Decree and this S;tﬂpmcn! Apgrecment and any Order(s) of the District Coun,
and shall be solely payable from the Redress Fund iand subject to paragraph 2 balow)
pursvant to the refund procedures c(;n(a.incd in the Consent Decree and this Settlement
Agreement.

(v) The Order(s) of the District Court approving the Notice and the Proof of
Claim and establishing the Claims Bar Date shall permanently cnjoin and bar any and all
claims of any Customer, Exchange, and/or Issving Bank, including any claim for =
Refund (or ony other puyment of any kind, including pursuant lo any Herris Eligible
Claim). which arc not submitted by the fime deadline prescribed by the Distict Coun
(i.e., a specific datc preseribed by the District Court. which will be aﬁprwdmtely forty-
five (45) days after the date of the Equity Receiver’s tranamittal of the Notice and the
‘Proof of Claim, but not affected by the actual date of such transmittal, such snbmission |
deadline being refesred O hérei:_z as the “Claimns Bar Date™); and al] claims or causes of
action by any Customer, Exchange, and/or Issuihg Bank, including any cleim for a
Refund of for enforcement of any rights or obligations under the Meyehant Agreement,
including, but not limited to, paragraph 4 thereof, which are not timely submitted on or
before the Claims Bar Daie shall be forever permancntly enjoined. barred. extinguished,
ond diseliowed.

(vi) The Order(s) of the District Coun approving this Setlement Agreement and
esteblishing the Claims Bar Date shall permanently enjoin and bar all Cuostomers,
Exchanges, and}or Issuing. Banks from secking redress against Hamris for any Hanis
Eligible Claim, Refund, Chargeback, or any deficiency therein, or for enforcement of any

rights or obligstions under the Merchant Agreemeant, including, but not limited o,
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paragraph 4 thereof or the Processing Agreement, and shall further provide that the eole
remedy of such Customcrs‘.'bgchang:s. and/or Issuing Banks Lo obtain payment of any
Harris Eligible Claim or Refund shal) be those set forth in the Consent Decree and this
Sctilement Agreemnent and sny Order(s) of the District Court approving and
implementing this Settlerent Agreement.

(vii) T.h= Ordet(s) of the District Court approving this Setlement Agrecment and
establishing the Clsims Bar Date shall specifically provide that Customess, 1ssuing
Banks, and/or Exchenges are expressly enjoined and precluded from initiating
chargeback procedures or teking amy action direcdy or indirectly cansing Ceard
chargebacks to be process=d against the Card sccounts with respect 10 charges for the
purchase of any Goods/Services from Bigsmnart, which purchases were made before enay
of the Consent Decree and selated to the Merchant Agreement of the Processing
Agreement (the " Chargebacks™).

(§iii) The Osder(s) of the District Court approving this Settlcment Ag'reem.cm.ané
establishing the Clajins Bar Date shall specifically provide that all Issuing Banpks,
Exchanges, and Harris shall not accept any Chorpebacks, shall not credit the Card
secounts of Cuslomers who submit Refund requests pursuant to the Consem Decree, and
shall not cause Chargebueks 10 be processed through the eredir card systemn.

(ix) The Order(s) of the District Couri approving this Sctllement Agrecment and
cstablishing the Claims Bar Date shall specifically provide that, from and after the Claims
Bar Date, all Cuslomers, Issuing Banks, and/or Exchanges shall be permanenty enjoined
from making any Chargebacks or seeking a Refund or secking to =aforce any obligavion

of Harris pursoant to the Merchant Agreement, including, but not limited to, paragraph 4

thereof or the Processing Agrecment,

13-
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(x) “The Order(s) of the Distsict Court approving this Setdement Agreement and
cstsblishing the Claims Bar Dite shall specifically provide that any Ruris Eligiblc Claim
payable to any Customer, Tssuing Bank, and/or Exchange shall be funhber redoced by, and
may be extinguished and disallowed by, all Defenses as herein defined.

(xi) The Consent Decree and all Order(s) of (he District Court approving and
implementing this Seltlement Agreement shall be épmssly entered as final orders by the
District Court,

(xii) To the exten applicable, ell conditions set forth in this paragraph C. may be
included and satisfied in the Consent Decree, or may be included and saﬁsﬁeé in any
other Order(s) 1o be entered by the District Court not Jater than the date of entry of the
Consent Decree by the District Court, or may be in¢Juded and satisfied by incorporation
by reference of provisions of the Consent Decree aod any such other Order(s) in each
other, 1l in accordance with the understanding and agreement of Lhe parties as described
herein. The form and substance of (he Consant Decree, the Order(s) of the Distict Court
approving this Setdement Agreement, and apy other Order(s) of the District Court
identified in the foregoing conditions most be reasonebly acceptable to Harris, which
acceptance sha)l not be uprcasonably withheld and which condition shall be satisfied
when counsel for Harris receives a copy of such Conscnt Decrec or other Ozder(s) and
Harris efther approves it as 1o form and content or, in al) events, Harrs does not object In
writing o its entry afier such receipt and after having had an opportunity to review & copy
of such Consent Decree or other Order(s). Notwithstanding refer=nces in the foregoing
conditions to particular Orders as well es the Consc'm Decree, the parties recngni_zc that

this Settlement Agreement is en Appendix to the Consent Decrec, and incorporated by

-14 -
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reference therein, and that, therefore, entry of the Consent Decree also will give effect (o

this SelUcmcnl‘Agte.menL a's-,ggl Order of the District Court.

2, Priority of Certain Payments from Redrcs.;" Fund; Upon the transfer of the
Reserve Account Balance 10 the Redress Fund pursuant to the procedures set forth in this
Scttlement Agreement, Bigsman and the FTC shall insiroct the Equity Receiver who, in tm,
shall be bound 10: (i).deposil the Reserve Account Balance into a separat® account to be
established a1 Harris that will hold only such funds; and (if) disburse funds from that account that
are solely auributable 10 the payment of first, any allowed Harris Expenses and second, any
allowed Harris Eligible Claim. Subjcct to any reimbursement claim of Harris provided for
herein, within thirty (30) days afier the Delermination Date end after all ellowed Harris .Expcnscs
and allowed Barris Eligible Claims have been ptid, and not later than June 1, 2001, any balapce
remaining in that account shall be available, withom rostriction, to the Equity Receiver to
administer and use as part of the Redress Fund pursoant to the terms of the Consent Decree; and
a1 the option of the Equity Receiver, such funds may be transferred into the acl:ount'in which the
remaining Redress Fond is deposited for forther administration, provided, however, that if there
remains any unresolved dispute of any Harris Expenkes or any Harris Eligible Claim, or any
unresolved indemnity claim uvnder Section 3 hereof, the Equity Receiver shal) sequester
scparaely from the rest of the Redress Fund whatever amounl( is necessary to pay the disputed
amount in full unti] the dispule is finally sesolved. To the extent 2 deficiency exists between the
amount of any Harris Eligible Claims and the Reserve Account Balance available to pay Herris
Eligible CJaims. the Equity Receiver sha)l make a pro-rafa distribation to sueh Customer,
Issuing Bank, and/or Exchangs in accordance with the procedures containgd in the Consent
Deceree and this Sctilement Agrecment. Harris shall bave no liability to any Customer, Issuing

Bank, Eachange, and/or Bigsmart for any such deficiency.

-15-
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i Indemnity and Bigsmart 1o be Condirionally Liable for Any Dejiciencies: Subject
10 (he terms of this Settlement Ag;cémem. and the Consent Decres, Bigsmart shall indemnify
Hasris and hold Harris harmless from any and all claims, los;es. expenses, costs, and liabilities
(includifig, but not litnied to, reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses) that may be brought
against or incurred by Harris and which arise out of, ere related 1o, or are in any way connccied
with any assertion of any Defendents (as that lerm is defined in the Consent Decree) against
Harris or by any Issning Bank, Exchange, Card holdes, and/or Customer to receive any payment
of any claim for a Refund, Chargeback, of Harris Eligible Claim, including any deficiency in any
such claim, or for enforcement of any rights or obligations under the Merchant Agreement,
inciuding, bt not limited to, paragraph 4 ther=of, or the Processing Agreemeat. Bigsman furfhcr
agrees that Harris, to the extent necessary 1o cover any rupaining Jiability or leigatio:; of Haris
to any claimant that is not permanently enjoined, satisfied, or barred, shall have an unsecured
claim against Bigsmart in an amount egual to any deficiency in the Reserve Account, or in any
deficiency in the amount of any Refund or Harxis Eligible Claim that is not paid in full 10 any
Customer, Issuing Bank, Card holder, and/or Exchange. provided, however, tbat Harris shall not
have any such claim wvn)sss and voul a claimant assens, notwilkstanding the Diﬂ:"ict Caount's
Orders. (hal Harris has vnsatisfied liability for any claim  Further, any rights that Bigémart
and/or the other Defendants (as defined in the Consent Decree) shall or may have 1o receive any
undistribuled pertion of the Reserve Account Balance from the Redress Fund shall be subject 10
the contnuing first, prior and secured elaim of Hanis to secure payment of any indemnity claim
thal Bigsmart is obliged to pay under Section 3 hereof before any such porntion of the Reserve
Account Balance is tuned over to Bigsmart or any other Defendant.

4, Reservation of Rights; Release of Bigsmari ard Related Persons: Harris reserves

all of whatever rights, claims, and canses of action il has oy may have against Bigsmart, and ils

.16 -
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officers. dircclors, employecs, successors, and assigns, and apy other applicable partics,
including al) Customers. Issuing Barks, Exchanges, and al] other Defendents (as that tem is
defined in the Consent Decree), and any person who ncni;cd any benefit from any proceeds
from a Card transaction with Bigsman, including, but not limited to, al] rights, claims, and
causes of action which arise put of|, are related to, of afe in any way connecled with the Merchant
Agrecmaent or any assertion of any lssuing Bank, Exchange and/er Customer to yecsive any
Chatgeback, Harris Eligible tlaim, or other Refund, or any deficiency therein. The security
interest and lien of Harris on the Reserve Account; which is undisputed as stipulated herein, shall
be preserved and shall be desmed to be valid and fully perfected apainst and shall continbe to
attach to the fupds attributable to the Reserve Account Balance as they are maintained by the
Equity Receiver pursoant to paragraph 2 above, provided, however, thut such lien and sccurnity
interest shall be deemed to be terminated and extinguished upon the satisfaction of all Harris
Eligible Claims es set forth jn paragraph 2 above. Subject 1o the above reservation of rights, and
effective on the Delermination Date and su‘uj;ct 1o the Consent Decree and the Order(s)
approving the Settlement Agreement being effective so that: (f) there exists ao claim asseried of
which-could be asserted against Harris for any Haris Eligible Claim, Refund, Chargeback. or
other related Kability: and (i) a)! liabilities. damages, losses, expenses, anorneys’ fees, and other
' professional fees and expenses have been satisficd and paid in full al no cost 1o Harris, Harris
shall forever rclease and discharge Bigsmart, its officers, directors, employees, represcntatives.
scrvants, sdvisors, parents, subsidiaries, agents, shareholders, attorneys, successors and assigns
(.:he “Bigsmari Parties”) from any and all allegations, actions, eauses of action, swits, claiios,
debts, demands, dues, accounts, bonds, covenants$, conténts, promises. damages, ¢Onwracts,
agreements, judgments, and liabjlities which it ever had or may have had, now has, or hereafier

can, shall, or may have against Bigsmart and al} other Defendants, whether in Jaw or in equity.

-17-
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and wheiher known or unknown, upon or by rzason of any act, omission, ar other matter, cause,
or thing whalsoever sclated to the Merchant Agreement, Bigsman and all other Defendants (as
that term is defined in the Consent Decree) acknowledge n.ﬁd confirm that this release does not
release any rights, clnims, or obligations existing of arising under the Settiement Agreement, the
Consent Decree, or any Order of the District Court approving the Settlement Apreement,
including, but not limited 1o, any deficiency liability or indemnification obligations of Bigsmart
that may arise, if at all, as provided in this Settlement Agreement and, in particular, under
Section 3 hereof.

3. Release of Harris: Bigﬁmm and the FTC have entered into this Settlement
Agreement in order 10 resojve any and all claims that any of them may have rcgarding
Bigsmart's operations and to address the sssertions of Harris regarding t-hc Consent Decree
against the Defendants. Therefore, effective on the Determination Date, Bigsmarnt end al] other
Defendants (as that term is defined in the Conscnt Decres) do hereby forever release and
discharge Harris, its officers, direciors, emplayess, representatives, servants, advisors, parents,
subsidiaries, agents, shar¢holders, attorneys, successors, and assigns from any and a1l allegations,
actions, causes of acton, suits, claims, dcbis, demands, dues, accounts, bonds, covenants,
contents, promiscs, damages, contracls, agreements, judgments and liabilities which cach of
them ever had or may have had, now have, or bereafter can, shal), or may have ngainst Harris,
whether in Jaw or in equily, and whether known or unknown, upon or ‘by reason of . any aci,
omissiop, or other mater, cause, or thing whatsoever related 1o the Merehant Agreement. Hamis”
acknowledges and confirms that this release does not ralease any rights, claims, or obligations
cxisting or arising under tis Settlement .A..grccmcm, the Consent Dﬂ:re-e. or any Order(s) of the
District Court approving this Settlement Agreement. Soch an Order approving this SetUement

Agreemnent shall be submitted to the District Court as heretofore provided, and such Order shall

.130
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expressly provide that Harris has no Jiabiliry to any Defendant, Customer, Issving Bank, and/or
Exchonge under any applicable law ;?7ngulation. incloding, J'vul not limlted to, any FTC rule or
repulation, any credit card rule, or the Truth jn Lending Act and Fair Debt Collsction Practices
Act, ar{sing ftom any transaction with Bigsmart which is the subject of this Settement
Agrecmeni. '

6. FTC Consent: The FTC acknowledges and agress that: (A) nothing contained in
the Consent Decree, this Sertlement Agreerment, or Bny Order(s) of the Dismict Court approving
this Seltlement Agrecment relates to, contemplates, or in any way suggests that there is any basis
for any known or unkn;awn claim against Harris for viclation of any applicable lew or regulation,
including, but not Jimited to, any FTC rulc or rcgulation, any credit card mile, or the Truth i
Lending Act and Fair Debt Collecton Practices Act arising from any wansaction with Bigsmart
which i& the subjeer of this Settlament Agreement; and (B) all claims and allegations contained
in the Coraplaint relate solcly to alleged conduct of the Defendants (28 defined in the Conscn_td
Decree) and not in any way to Hartis apd its parents, subsidiaries, direciors, ‘officers, .employ=cs,
agents, and autorneys. The FTC furiher acknowledges that it is entering into this Settlement
Agreement for the purpose of, inrer alia, providing 2 mechanism for certain funds to be obtained
and distribuled pursuant 10 the Consent Decree, which funds are subjeci 1o the securty interest
and lien asserted by Harris and undisputed a5 provided herein. The FTC approves of and fully
consents to he structure of this Settlement Agreement and finds that the procedures
contemplated herein benefit and facilitate those certain procedures contained in the Consent
Decree and the cooperation of Harris in connection therewith.

7. Limitation of I;l'ablll'ly of Harris: Notwithstanding snything contained herein to
the contrary, Harris shall not have any liability for the representations, warTanties, covenants,

agreements, or other obligations hereunder or ip any of the certificates, notices, or agrecments

«19.
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delivered by or between Bigsmart and any Custorner, Issuing Bank, Exchange, and/or any
Defendant (as that tcrm is deﬁned--i}iuhc Consent Decrze)._as to a}l of which recourse shall be
had solely 10 the remnedies set forth in the Consent Decree ;nd this Settjement Agree.mcm with
respect o the Redress Fund. Nothing swared hcrcm shall relicve Harris or any other party 10 this
Settlemenl Agreement from the contlinuing obligation to comply fully with the terms of 1his
Sctilement Agresment. _ '

8. Amendments/Modification: The parties bereto agree that this Settlement
Agreement may not be modified except by an instrument in writing, signed by the duly
guthorized represenlatives of each of the parties hereto, and no waiver of compliance of any
provision or condition hersof and no consent provided for herein shall be effective uniess
evidenced by an instrument in writing duly executed by the party beteto which is to be charged
witl; such waiver or consent.

9. Further Assurances: Upon entry of the Consent Decree by the District Court, the
parties hereto are hereby authorized to take such actions as may be reasonably necessary Lo effect

the provisions of this Settlement Agreement and implement the (rapsactions contemplated

thereby,

10, Governing Law: This Settlement Agrecment shall be governed, interpreted.

conerued, and enforced in accordance with the Jaws of the United States and the State of 1linois.

-20-
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12.  Cownlerpartss This Scitlemeni Apreement may be exmculed jn counierpans

including facsimile counterpans. H ARRIS TRUST AND SAVINGS BANK

By

lis

¥EDERAL TEADE COMMISSION j _

[/ _,‘D
BY . £
s RHogvBtyy
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